DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Land Management

[L12200000.DD0000.LLCAD06000.19X (MO#4500135781)]

Notice of Temporary Closure on Public Lands in Riverside County, CA

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management, Interior.

ACTION: Notice of temporary closure.

SUMMARY: As authorized under the provisions of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976, as amended, the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Palm Springs-South Coast Field Office will temporarily close and restrict uses of certain public land surrounding the Bradshaw Trail in Riverside County, California, to all public use to provide for public safety at the site. Notice is hereby given that identified public lands administered by the Palm Springs-South Coast Field Office, BLM, are temporarily closed to all public entry.

DATES: This temporary closure will be in effect at 12:01 a.m., January 6, 2020, through 11:59 p.m., February 7, 2020.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Douglas Herrema, Field Manager, 1201 Bird Center Drive, Palm Springs, CA 92262; telephone: 760–833–7100; email: *dherrema@blm.gov.* Persons who use a telecommunications device for the deaf (TDD) may call the Federal Relay Service (FRS) at 1–800–877–8339 to contact Mr. Herrema during normal business hours. The FRS is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, to leave a message or question. You will receive a reply during normal hours.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This closure affects public lands north of the Bradshaw Trail, including the trail itself, a county maintained roadway in Riverside County, California. The legal description of the affected public lands is:

San Bernardino Meridian

- T. 7 S., R. 12 E.,
- Sec. 36, lots 3, 4, 6, and 7.
- T. 8 S., R. 12 E., Sec. 5, lots 6 through 10, 14, 15, 24, and 25.
- T. 7 S., R. 13 E.,
- Sec. 21, lots 1, 2, and 4.
- T. 7 S., R. 14 E.,
- Sec. 19, lots 8, 9, 12, and 13;
- Sec. 25, lots 1, 2, 5 through 8, 11, 12, and 13;
- Sec. 27, lots 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8, 10, and 11, $S^{1/2}N^{1/2}SE^{1/4}$, and $S^{1/2}N^{1/2}SW^{1/4}$;
- Sec. 29, lots 1, 2, 4, 5, 8 through 11, 13, 14, 17, and 18, NW¹/₄SE¹/₄NE¹/₄, and S¹/₂SE¹/₄NE¹/₄;
- Sec. 33, lots 2 and 4.

- T. 7 S., R. 15 E., Sec. 33, lots 4, 5, 7, 8, 23, 24, and 26, NW¹/4SE¹/4NW¹/4, and W¹/2NW¹/4SW¹/4NW¹/4,
- T. 8 S., R. 15 E., Sec. 3, lots 1, 2, 5, 6, 9, 10, 12, and 13; Sec. 11, lots 1, 2, and 3. The area described is approximately 630

acres in Riverside County, California.

The closure is necessary because of public health and safety risks caused by the potential for unknown unexploded ordnance and other hazardous materials located on the lands. The approximate 630 acres of public lands were transferred to the Department of the Navy for inclusion in the Chocolate Mountain Aerial Gunnery Range and were used as a live-bombing and training facility. Pursuant to section 2966 of Subtitle E of Public Law 113-66, these acres are part of a larger relinquishment of lands (2,000 acres) to the Department of the Interior. The Department of the Navy is in the process of executing a response action plan to clean the contaminated parcels. Once the parcels are decontaminated, the BLM will reopen the lands to the public. The lands are closed to all forms of public entry, including dispersed camping, or other recreational activities on the above described lands.

Exceptions: Temporary closure restrictions do not apply to Federal, State, and local officers and employees in the performance of their official duties; members of organized rescue or fire-fighting forces in the performance of their official duties; and persons with written authorization from the BLM.

Enforcement: Any person who violates this closure may be tried before a United States Magistrate and fined in accordance with 18 U.S.C. 3571, imprisoned no more than 12 months under 43 U.S.C. 1733(a) and 43 CFR 8360.0–7, or both. In accordance with 43 CFR 8365.1–7, State or local officials may also impose penalties for violations of California law.

(Authority: 40 CFR 1501.7)

Danielle Chi,

Deputy State Director, Resources and Fire. [FR Doc. 2019–24114 Filed 11–4–19; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4310–40–P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management

Notice on Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas Lease Sales; MMAA104000

AGENCY: Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Interior. **ACTION:** List of Restricted Joint Bidders.

Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 6213 and the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) regulatory restrictions on joint bidding, 30 CFR 556.511-515, the Director of BOEM is publishing a List of Restricted Joint Bidders. Any entity appearing on this list is limited in its ability to submit a joint bid. Specifically, an entity appearing within one of the following groups is restricted from bidding with any entity listed in any of the other groups on the List of Restricted Joint Bidders at all Outer Continental Shelf oil and gas lease sales to be held during the bidding period November 1, 2019, through April 30, 2020.

This List of Restricted Joint Bidders is in effect for the period November 1, 2019, through April 30, 2020, and replaces the prior list published on June 6, 2018 (84 FR 26442), covering the period of May 1, 2019, through October 31, 2019.

Group I **BP** America Production Company **BP** Exploration & Production Inc. BP Exploration (Alaska) Inc. Group II Chevron Corporation Chevron U.S.A. Inc. Chevron Midcontinent, L.P. Unocal Corporation Union Oil Company of California Pure Partners, L.P. Group III Eni Petroleum Co. Inc. Eni Petroleum US LLC Eni Oil US LLC Eni Marketing Inc. Eni BB Petroleum Inc. Eni US Operating Co. Inc. Eni BB Pipeline LLC Group IV Equinor ASA Equinor Gulf of Mexico LLC Equinor USA E&P Inc. Group V Exxon Mobil Corporation ExxonMobil Exploration Company Group VI Shell Oil Company Shell Offshore Inc. SWEPI LP Shell Frontier Oil & Gas Inc. SOI Finance Inc. Shell Gulf of Mexico Inc. Group VII Total E&P USA, Inc.

In addition to the entities listed above on the List of Restricted Joint Bidders, certain joint or single bids submitted by any entity may be disqualified, and rejected, by BOEM if that entity is chargeable for the prior production period with an average daily production in excess of 1.6 million barrels of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids. *See* 30 CFR 556.512(b)–(d). **Authority:** 42 U.S.C. 6213; and 30 CFR 556.511–556.515.

Walter D. Cruickshank,

Acting Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management.

[FR Doc. 2019–24052 Filed 11–4–19; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4310–MR–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Drug Enforcement Administration

[Docket No. DEA-536]

Bulk Manufacturer of Controlled Substances Application: Organix, Inc.

ACTION: Notice of application.

DATES: Registered bulk manufacturers of the affected basic classes, and applicants therefore, may file written comments on or objections to the issuance of the proposed registration on or before January 6, 2020.

ADDRESSES: Written comments should be sent to: Drug Enforcement Administration, Attention: DEA Federal Register Representative/DPW, 8701 Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In accordance with 21 CFR 1301.33(a), this is notice that on September 9, 2019, Organix, Inc., 240 Salem Street, Woburn, Massachusetts 01801–2029 applied to be registered as a bulk manufacturer of the following basic classes of controlled substances:

Controlled substance		
Gamma Hydroxybutyric Acid	Drug code	Schedule
Lysergic acid diethylamide Marihuana Tetrahydrocannabinols Dimethyltryptamine Psilocybin Psilocyn Heroin	2010 7315 7360 7370 7435 7437 7438 9200	
Morphine	9300	П

The company plans to synthesize the listed controlled substances for distribution to its customers. In reference to drug codes 7360 (marihuana) and 7370 (THC), the company plans to bulk manufacture these drugs as synthetics. No other activities for these drug codes are authorized for this registration.

Dated: October 18, 2019.

William T. McDermott, Assistant Administrator. [FR Doc. 2019–24107 Filed 11–4–19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-09-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Drug Enforcement Administration

[Docket No. DEA-526]

Bulk Manufacturer of Controlled Substances Application: Noramco Inc.

ACTION: Notice of application.

DATES: Registered bulk manufacturer of the affected basic classes, and applicants therefore, may file written comments on or objections to the issuance of the proposed registration on or before January 6, 2020.

ADDRESSES: Written comments should be sent to: Drug Enforcement Administration, Attention: DEA Federal Register Representative/DPW, 8701 Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In accordance with 21 CFR 1301.33(a), this is notice that on August 6, 2019, Noramco Inc., 500 Swedes Landing Road, Wilmington, Delaware 19801– 4417 applied to be registered as a bulk manufacturer of the following basic classes of controlled substances:

Controlled substance	Drug code	Schedule
Marihuana Tetrahydrocannabinols Codeine-N-oxide Dihydromorphine Hydromorphinol Morphine-N-oxide Amphetamine Methylphenidate Nabilone	7360 7370 9053 9145 9301 9307 1100 1724 7379	
Phenylacetone	8501 9050	II II
Codeine Dihydrocodeine	9050 9120	
Oxycodone	9143	

Drug code Controlled substance Schedule 9150 Hydromorphone Ш Hydrocodone 9193 Ш Morphine 9300 Ш Oripavine 9330 Ш Thebaine 9333 Ш Opium extracts 9610 Ш Opium fluid extract 9620 Ш 9630 Opium tincture Ш Opium, powdered 9639 Ш Opium, granulated 9640 Ш Oxymorphone 9652 Ш Noroxymorphone 9668 Ш Ш Tapentadol 9780

The company plans to manufacture the listed controlled substances as an Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API) for supply to its customers. In reference to drug codes 7360 (marihuana) and 7370 (tetrahydrocannabinols), the company plans to bulk manufacture these drugs as synthetics. No other activities for these drug codes are authorized for this registration.

Dated: October 22, 2019.

William T. McDermott,

Assistant Administrator.

[FR Doc. 2019–24106 Filed 11–4–19; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–09–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Drug Enforcement Administration

[Docket No. DEA-530]

Importer of Controlled Substances Registration

ACTION: Notice of registration.

SUMMARY: The registrants listed below have applied for and been granted registration by the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) as importers of schedule I and II controlled substances.

The companies listed below applied to be registered as an importers of various basic classes of schedule I and II controlled substances. Information on previously published notices is listed in the table below. No comments or objections were submitted and no requests for a hearing were submitted for these notices.

Companies	FR docket	Published
Catalent Pharma Solutions, LLC	84 FR 36945	July 30, 2019.
Research Triangle Institute	84 FR 36941	July 30, 2019.

The DEA has considered the factors in 21 U.S.C. 823, 952(a) and 958(a) and determined that the registration of the listed registrants to import the applicable various basic classes of schedule I and II controlled substances is consistent with the public interest and with United States obligations under international treaties, conventions, or protocols in effect on May 1, 1971. The DEA investigated each of the company's maintenance of effective controls against diversion by inspecting and testing each company's physical security systems, verifying